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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of M/s. KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

[ have audited the financial statements of M/S.KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and other

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

[ conducted my audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. My responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 1 believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion on the financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the

financial statements and my auditors’ report thereon

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not and will not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is no material misstatement of

this other information, so, I have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safe
guarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

(e
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concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, I am also responsible for
expressing my opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference

to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Dvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of

Directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
I.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, I give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, I report that:

a) I have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of my audit.

4



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of M/s. KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

b)

d)

)

In my opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from my examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014,

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account.

In my opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under

section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 April 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March

2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to my

separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in my opinion and to the best of my

information and according to the explanations given to me:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its

financial position in its financial statements - Refer note 34 to the financial statements.
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b)

d)

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall:

= directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any matter

whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

» provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

ii) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 43 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

= directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided

under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material misstatement.
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e) The interim dividend paid on equity shares during the year 2024-25 Rs.8200 Lakhs. The
dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to

declaration of dividend.

f) Based on my examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account, however, the feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility has not been enabled. Consequently, I am unable to comment on audit

trail feature of the said software,

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act: In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, no
remuneration is paid by the Company to its directors during the current year. The Ministry of
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are

required to be commented upon by me.

UDIN: 25025028BMIDGB7224

For A VETRIVEI} COMPANY
PLACE: Coimbatore ' 5
. ETRIVEL, B.Sc., FCA .,
DATE: 29.04.2025 CA.AV A 025023

(Propriator)



M/S.KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements of K.P.R.
SUGAR Mill Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Referred to my report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased
manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant
and equipment were verified during the year. In my opinion, this periodicity of physical verification
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No

discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. Immovable
properties whose title deeds have been charged as security for loans are held in the name of the

Company based on the confirmations directly received by me from lenders.

(d)According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis 6f my examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment

(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination of
the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and

rules made thereunder.




(i)

(iii)

M/S.KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED

(a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit, has been physically verified by the management during
the year. In my opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the

aggregate of each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. In my opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or

financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has made investments, provided guarantee or security,
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, limited

liability partnership and other parties in respect of which the requisite information is as follows :

a) In my opinion and according to the information provided to me the Company has granted loans
or advances to another wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company and the details of the

said loan or advance is as follows:

Aggregate amount during the | % to the total loans granted Closing balance as on
year 31.3.2025
Rs.5,992 Lakhs 100% Rs.5,992 Lakhs

b) According to the information and explanations given to me and based on the audit procedures
conducted by me, in my opinion the investments made, guarantees provided, the terms and
conditions of the grant of loans during the year are, not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company. The Company has not provided any advances in the nature of loans or any security

to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in my opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular, where applicable. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of

loans to any party during the year. Also refer note 38 to the standalone financial statements.




(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

M/S.KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED

d) According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Also refer note 38 to the standalone financial statements. Further, the Company

has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any party during the year.

e) According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the

over dues of existing loans given to same patties.

f) According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of

repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination of
records of the Company, in respect of investments made and loans, guarantees and security given by
the Company, in my opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the

Act”) have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the

public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

I have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Act in respect of its manufactured goods and services provided by it and are of the opinion that
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, [ have
not carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether these are

accurate or complete.

(a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed
into Goods and Services Tax (‘GST”).

According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination of

the records of the Company, in my opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in

10




(viii)

(ix)
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respect of undisputed statutory dues including GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the

Company with the appropriate authorities;

Accordiné to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination of
the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax Duty of customs or Cess or other Statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination of
the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any

dispute, except as follows:

Name of the Nature of the | Amount (Rs. | Period to which the Forum where dispute is

statute dues in lakhs) amount relates pending
GST GST 5.00 | 2017-18 & 2018-19 | Commissioner of GST,
Act,2017 Coimbatore.

|

According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income

Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not default in repayment of loans and borrowing or

in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or

financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me by the

management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

11




(x)

(xi)

(xii)

M/S. KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED

(d) According to the information and explanations given to me and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, I report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for

long-term purposes by the Company.

(€) According to the information and explanations given to me and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, I report that the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint

ventures as defined under the Act.

() According to the information and explanations given to me and procedures performed by me, I
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its

subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause

3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to me, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or

reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to me, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to me by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the

Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to me, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.

Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

- | |



(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

M/S.KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED

In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, the transactions with
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the
details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by

the applicable accounting standards.

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to me and my audit procedures, in my opinion,

the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) I have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under

audit.

In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and

hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause3 (xvi)(d)

are not applicable

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial

year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii)

(xix)

of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, my knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on my examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,

nothing has come to my attention, which causes me to believe that any material uncertainty exists as

13
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on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. I, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. I
further state that my reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 1 neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from

the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses
3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

(xxi) The Company has not made investments in subsidiary company. Therefore, the Company does not
require to prepare consolidated financial statement. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xxi) of

~paragraph 3 of order are not applicable to the Company.

UDIN: 25025028BMIDGB7224

PLACE: Coimbatore For A VET‘l:yL & COMPANY

DATE: 29.04.2025

CA. A VETRIVEL, B.Sc.,FCA.,
M.No:025028
(Proprietor)



M/S. KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the audit of the financial statements of K.P.R.
Sugar Mill Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025,

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of my report of even date),

Opinion

I have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of K.P.R. Sugar Mill

Limited(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with my audit of the financial statements of

the Company for the year ended on that date.

In my opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter

referred to as “the Act”).

15
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Auditors’ Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were

established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

My audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. My audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.,

I believe that the audit evidence 1 have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

4; | ' \/
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

UDIN: 25025028BMIDGB7224 For AVETRW COMPANY

PLACE: Coimbatore %
CA. AVETRIVEL, B.Sc.,FCA.,
DATE: 29.04.2025 M. No: 025028

(Proprietor)
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K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2025

(X in Lakhs
As at As at
Note 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 41,014 43,392
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 - 610
{c) Financial Assets
(i) Loans 5 5,992 10,000
(ii) Other financial assets 6 12 12
(d) Other non current assets 7 18 312
(e) Other tax assets (net) 8 13 100
Total non - current assets 47,049 54,426
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 25,638 28,383
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 10 3,610 -
(i) Trade receivables 11 2,863 5,927
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 12 1,216 101
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 66 84
(iv) Other financial assets 14 394 273
(c) Other current assets 15 2,212 11,503
Total current assets 35,999 46,271
Total assets 83,048 1,00,697
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Share capital 16 205 205
(b) Other equity 17 67,773 68,799
Total equity 67,978 69,004
Liabilities
(2) Non - current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 4,776 5,908
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 19 2,705 2,635
(c) Other non-current liabilities 20 136 537
Total non - current liabilities 7,617 9,080
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 2,194 21,201
(i) Trade payables
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 22(A) 69 13
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
and small enterprises 22(B) 4,718 596
(b) Other current liabilities : 23 241 230
(c) Current tax liabilities(net) 24 231 573
Total current liahilities 7,453 22,613
Total Equity and Liabilities 83,048 1,00,697
Material accounting policies 3
The notes from 1 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors "To be read with my report of even date"

. A.Vetrivel & Company

\ \K/ Chartered Accountants

% /" Firm's Registration Number : 0274968
K.P.Ramasamy e

Director
DIN: 00003736

Membership No :025028

KPD Sigamani F. ataréj D46 —
Director Director ; o2 8 BMY

DIN: 00003744 DIN: 00229137 UOW'. 25025

Coimbatore

29.04.2025 A VETRIVEL & COM PANY

Chartered Accountants
M.No: 025028
1/1, Seth Narayandas Lay-out-ll
Tatabad, Coimbatore-641012.
Phone:0422-2495760



K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

(% in Lakhs)
Year Ended
Note
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
l. Revenue from operations 25 72,597 90,513
Il. Other income 26 2,367 2,214
Ill. Total Income (I+Il) 74,964 92,727
IV. Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 27 54,443 54,869
Purchase of stock-in-trade - 4,717
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work- in-progress and stock in trade 28 2712 4,859
Employee benefits expense 29 381 381
Finance costs 30 765 876
Depreciation and amortisation’ expenses 4 3,302 2,826
Other expenses 31 3,614 4275
V. Total expenses 65,217 72,803
VI. Profit before tax (11I-V) 9,747 19,924
VII. Tax expenses
Current tax

- Pertaining to current period 2,498 4,963

- Pertaining to prior period 5 (295)

Deferred tax 70 149
Income tax expense 2,573 4,817
VIII. Profit for the period (VI-VII) 71474 15,107
Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
IX. Net other comprehensive income “ =
X. Total comprehensive income for the period (VIII+IX) 7,174 15,107
Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Basic and diluted EPS (in T) 39 349.95 736.24
Material accounting policies 3

The notes from 1 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\Q\\(—//z«

K.P.Ramasamy

Director
DIN: 00003736

KPD Sigamani
Director
DIN: 00003744

Coimbatore
29.04.2025

"To be read with my report of even date"

AVetrivel & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number : 0274565

v

5 %ér AVetrivel

Chartered Accountant
Director Membership No :025028

P.Nataraj

DIN: 00229137

UD ! 25025028 eI D& R TL24

A VETRIVEL & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
M.No: 025028

1/1, Seth Narayandas Lay-out-ll
Tatabad, Coimbatore-641012.
Phone:0422-2485760



K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

(¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 7,174 15,107
Adjustments for:
Income tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and 2,673 4,817
loss
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,302 2,826
Loss on sale of assets (7) 18
Gain on sale of current investments (67) (691)
Impairment loss on financial assets 5 31
Finance costs 765 876
Interest income (1,021) (225)
Rental income from operating leases (1,200) (1,200)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 11,519 21,559
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments For (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories 2,745 4,846
Trade receivables 3,064 (1,349)
Other current assets 9,291 (3,278)
Other non-current assets 204 (107)
Other financial ssset (122) (162)
Other non-current Financial assets y (1
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 4178 (6,878)
Other current liabilities 11 52
Bank Balance Not Considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents
(i) Margin Deposit Account 18 (5)
Cash Generated From Operations 30,908 14,677
Net income tax (paid) (2,758) (3,678)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) 28,150 10,999
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipments (638) (5,360)
Purchase of current investments (net) (3,543) 691
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments 65 167
Interest Received:
- Group Company 1,017 186
- Others 5 37
Rental Income Received from Operating Leases 1,200 1,200
Net Cash Flow Used In Investing Activities (B) (1,894) (3,079)




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

{% in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
RAEALATRARS 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from share capital
Redemption of Preference Shares B (5,580)
Loans to related party 4,008 1516
Repayment of long-term borrowings (1,177) (2,184)
Net increase / (decrease) in working capital borrowings (19,007) 7,675
Finance costs paid (765) (876)
Dividends paid (8,200) (9,034)
Net Cash Flow Used In Financing Activities (C) (25,141) (8,483)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,115 (663)
Add: Opening cash and cash equivalents 101 664
Closing Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note No 12) 1,216 101
Cash and cash equivalents is represented by
Closing cash and cash equivalents comprises
(a) Cash on hand 5 20
(b) Balance with banks:
i) In Current accounts 1,211 81
1,216 101

Material accounting policies

The notes from 1 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

AN\

Director
DIN: 00003736

KED Sigamani

Director
DIN; 00003744

Coimbatore
29.04.2025

"To be read with my report of even date"

A.Vetrivel & Company

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number : 0274965

% Vetrivel

Proprietor
; @/ Membership No :025028

.Nataraj

Director

DIN:00229137
UDW) 25525228 2+ ‘.oﬂm'.'su}




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

a. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at April 01, 2023
Changes during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Changes during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2025

b. Preference Share Capital

Balance as at April 01, 2023

Less : Redemption of Preference shares
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Less : Redemption of Preference shares
Balance as at March 31, 2025

c.Other Equity

(¥ in Lakhs)
205

205

205

[ __——

189
189

(¥ in Lakhs)

Securities
Premium
Reserve

Capital

Particulars Reserve

Total Other
Equity

Retained
Earnings

General
Reserve

Capital
Redemption
Reserve

Balance as at April 01, 2023 5,647 293
Profit for the year -
Preference dividend 2022-23 % -
Premium on redemption of Preference Shares (5,391)
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve

Interm Dividend relating to 2023-24 paid (% 440
per Share)

68,117
15,107

(14)
(5,391)
(189) .

189 - 62,088
- 15,107
K (14)

189

(9,020) (9,020)

Balance as at March 31, 2024 156 293

378 - 67,972 68,799

Profit for the year . «
Premium on redemption of Preference Shares
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve
Interm Dividend relating to 2024-25 paid (T 400
per Share)

7,174

4 7,174

(8,200) (8,200)

Balance as at March 31, 2025 156 293

67,773

378 - 66,946

Material accounting policies 3
The notes from 1 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\K\ E//»

K.P.Ramasamy

Director
DIN: 00003736

Phi

KPD Sigamani .Nataraj

Director
DIN: 00003744

Director
DIN: 00229137

Coimbatore
29.04.2025

"To be read with my report of even date"
A Vetrivel & Company

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number : 027496S

g,,,/

A.Vetrivel
Proprietor
Membership No :025028

UDMN 225025028 M\ DEHRT22 4

A VETRIVEL & COMPANY

"" Chartered Accountants

M.No: 025028 '

1/1, Seth Narayandas Lay-out-d

Tatabad, Coimbatore-641 012.
Phcne:0422—2495760



K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2025

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION
K.P.R.Sugar Mill Limited (‘the Company") is the Wholly owned Subsidiary Company of K.P.R.Mill Limited.
Plant Located at Vijayapur District, Karnataka State. It produces Sugar along with Green Energy viz., Co-
Gen Power and Ethanol. The Company also has garment manufacturing facilitiy at Coimbatore Tamilnadu.

The Company's registered office is at No.5, A.K.S.Nagar, Thadagam Road, Coimbatore - 641 001, Tamil
Nadu, India.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

A STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and other relevant provisions of the Act, as amended from time
to time.
These financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025 are approved for issue by the Company's Board
of Directors On 29-04-2025
Details of the Company's accounting policies, including changes thereto, are included in note 3. The
Company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all the periods present in these financial
statements,

B Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

C BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
These financial statements have been prepared under historical cost basis and on an accrual basis, except
for the following items which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date:

i. Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss;
ii. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial
instruments) and

iii. Net defined (asset) / liability measured at fair value of plan assets less present value of obligations limited
as explained in note 3 (K).

D USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses,
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively,

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 15 - classification, measurement and recagnition of Government grants

Note 3(H) and 37: Financial instruments: Classification and measurement

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties:

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk
of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year is included in the following notes:

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets:

In assessing impairment, management has estimated economic use of assets, the recoverable amount of
each asset or cash- generating units based on expected future cash flows and use an interest rate to
discount them. Estimation of uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating cash flows and
determination of a suitable discount rate. (also refer Note 3Q)

(ii) Useful lives of depreciable assets:

Management reviews its estimate of useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on
expected utility of assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technological obsolescence that may
change utility of assets (also refer Note 3D).



K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2025

(i) Inventories:

Management has carefully estimated the net realizable values of inventories, taking into account the most
reliable evidence available at each reporting date. The future realization of these inventories may be
affected by market-driven changes (also refer Note 3A).

(iv) Defined benefit obligation (DBO):

expenses (also Refer Note 42)

(v) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:
Key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources (also refer Note 37).

(vi) Impairment of financial assets - Refer Note 3Q

E MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair
value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an assetor a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. The inputs used to measure the fair value of assets or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy. Accordingly, the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the low level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Management uses various valuation techniques to determine fair value of financial instruments (where
active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent
with how market participants would price the instrument. Management based on its assumptions on
observable data as far as possible but where it not available, the management uses the best information
available, Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length
transaction at the reporting date (also refer Note 37). The Company recognises transfers between levels of
the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

F CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION
The Company classifies an asset as current asset when:
- it expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;
- it holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
- it expects to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or
- the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when:
- it expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;
- it holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;
- the liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
- it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
or cash equivalents. The Company’s normal operating cycle is twelve months,



K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2025

3 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A) INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of raw materials, components,
stock-in-frade, consumable stores and spare parts are determined using first-in first-out / specific
identification method and includes freight, taxes and duties, net of duty credits wherever applicable, and any
other expenditure incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. In the case of finished
goods and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of manufacturing overheads based on
normal operating capacity.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost
of completion and selling expenses. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with
reference to the selling prices of related finished products. Raw materials, stores and spares, packing and
others held for use in the production of finished goods are not written down below except in cases where
material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished goods will exceed their net
realizable value,
The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item by item basis.

B) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (FOR PURPOSES OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT)
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances
(with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

C) CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available information. In cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances
with banks in current accounts and other short- term highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

D) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS
Recognition and measurement:
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

Free hold land is stated at historical cost less any accumulated impairment losses. ltems of properly, plant
and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment

comprises ‘
a. purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable taxes on purchase (goods and service tax),

after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

b. any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use estimated
costs of dismantling and remaving the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

c. The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended
use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Any gain/ loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure . . . _
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised, only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Component accounting ' _

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation: . ‘ _ :
Depreciation is calculated on the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estrmat.ed re_su?luai
values using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in the
Statement of profit and loss. Freehold land is not depreciated.



K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2025

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged over the estimated useful life of the asset or part
of the asset (after considering double/triple shifts) as evaluated on technical assessment on straight-line
method, in accordance with Part A of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful life of the property, plant and equipment followed by the Company for the current and
the comparative period are as follows :

Asset Management’s estimated| Useful life as per Schedule Il
useful life
Factory Building ~ 30 Years ~ 30 Years
Non Factory Building ~ 60 Years ~ 60 Years
Plant & Equipments - Sugar ~10 Years ~ 8-20 Years
Plant & Equipments - Garment ~ 20 Years ~ 8-20 Years
Electricals ~ 14 Years ~10 Years
Computers & accessories ~ 3 Years ~ 3-6 Years
Furniture's & fixtures ~ 10 Years ~10 Years
Vehicles ~ 8-10 Years ~ 8-10 Years

pepreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted
if necessary, for each reporting period. Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that its
estimate of useful life as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use the
asset, '

On property, plant and equipment added/ disposed off during the year, depreciation is charged on pro-rata
basis for the period from/upto which the asset is ready for use/disposed off.

Capital work-in-progress

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. They
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
The estimated amount of intangible asset consisting software license is 3 years.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

E) REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
The Company generates revenue primarily from sale of Sugar, power,Ethanol,Molasses and Readymade
Garments. The Company also earns revenue from rendering of services.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company
recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer.

1.1 Sale of products:

Revenue is recognised when a promise in a customer contract (performance obligation) has been satisfied
by transferring control over the promised goods to the customer. Control over a promised good refers to th_e
ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from, those gooads. Control'ts
usually transferred upon shipment, delivery to, upon receipt of goods by the customer, in accordance with
the individual delivery and acceptance terms agreed with the customers.




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2025

The amount of revenue to be recognized (transaction price) is based on the consideration expected to be
received in exchange for goods, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as sales tax or
other taxes directly linked to sales. If a contract contains more than one performance obligation, the
trgnsaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling

contractual right to return goods only when authorised by the Company.

F) OTHER INCOME
Dividend income from investments is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established and
when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists.
Rental income under operating leases is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line
basis over the term of the lease except where such receipts are structured to increase in line with the
expected general inflation to compensate for the Company's (lessor) expected inflationary costs increases.

Export incentives are accounted in the year of exports based on eligibility and expected amount on
realisation.

G) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATIONS
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of
the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses from settiement of these transactions are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on
translation are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

H) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(i) Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities are initially recognised when they are ariginated.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initally recognized when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an
item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

The 'trade payable' is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased in the normal course of
business. They are recognised at their transaction and services availed value if the transaction do not

contain significant financing component,

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - debt investment;
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) — equity investment; or

- Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)



K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 .03.2025

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the
following categories: non-derivative financial assets comprising amortised cost, debt instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), equity instruments at FVTOCI or fair value through
profit and loss account (FVTPL), non derivative financial liabilities at amortised cost or FYTPL and derivative
financial instruments (under the category of financial assets or financial liabilities) at FVTPL.

The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the business model for which it is
held. Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

a) Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset shall he measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL : '

(a) itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows: and

(b) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
Debt instruments at FVTOCI

A debt Investment will be measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following condiitions are met and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

(a) it is held within a business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

(b) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Equity instruments at FVTOC|

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevacably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in Other comprehensive income ('OCI'). This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividend are recognised in OCI| which is not subsequently recycled to statement of
profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL.

On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management:
- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed:

- how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of
the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected: and
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- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows:

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature s consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par
amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of
the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Financial assets at FVTPL:
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or

dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost:

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in
statement of profit and loss,

Debt investments at FVOCI: . .
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective

interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are

reclassified to statement of profit and loss,
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Equity investments at FVOCI:
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit or
loss.

(iii) Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which either
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain
control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases the
transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms
is recognised at fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying
amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed) is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(v) Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates on foreign currency assets or liabilities and forecasted cash
flows denominated in foreign currencies. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

Derivatives are recognized and measured at fair value. Aftributable transaction costs are recognized in
statement of profit and loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and
changes therein are generally recognised in profit and loss.Derivatives are carried as financial assets when
the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

[) GOVERNMENT GRANTS, SUBSIDIES AND EXPORT INCENTIVES _ . '
Government grants and subsidies related to assets, including nen-monetary grants, are initially recognised
as deferred income at fair value if there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Company
will comply with the conditions associated with the grant; they are then recognised in statement of profit and
loss as other operating revenue / other income on a systematic basis.
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as a reduced depreciation expense. Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recognised by increasing
the carrying amount of the asset and the cumulative additional depreciation that would have been
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the absence of the grant is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they intended to compensate and presented in other
operating Revenue.

recognised when it becomes receivable.
Export benefits are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty
in receiving the same.

J) INVESTMENTS

Long term ihvestments (excluding investment properties) are carried at cost less provision for diminution
other than temporary in the value of such investments. Current investments are stated at lower of cost and
fair value. Cost of investments include acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

K) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Short term employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus, if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(b) Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan where the Company's legal or constructive
obligation is limited to the amount that it contributes to a separate legal entity. The Company makes
specified contributions towards Government administered provident fund and employee state insurance
schemes. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plan are expensed as an employee henefits
expense in the statement of profit and loss in period in which the related service is provided by the
employee. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in future payments is available,

(c) Defined benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Post
employment benefit comprise of Gratuity which are accounted for as follows:
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Gratuity Fund
Fo_r defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of praviding benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.

 Is reflected immediately in the balance
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur,
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings
and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan
scount rate at the beginning of the period to the net

time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in Ind AS 116,

i) As a lessee:

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices.
However, for the leases of property the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and
account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component,

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will
exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining
interest rates from various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of
the lease and type of the asset leased.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

-fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

-variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

-amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

-the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or
if there is a revision in —substance fixed lease payment.
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When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a correspanding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero. The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition
of investment property in “property, plant and equipment” and lease liabilities separately in balance sheet
within "Financial liabilities”.

Short term leases and low value assets:

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases, including IT equipment. The Company recognises the lease payments
associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on in statement of profit and loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

ii) As a lessor
At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case,
then the lease is a finance lease: if not, then it is an operating lease. As a part of this assessment, the Group
considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term as part of other income. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised
over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessar’s net
investment in the lease,

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

~ M) BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing cost are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are considered as adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with
the borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they are
incurred.

N) SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and
the internal organisation and management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which
separate financial information is available and for which operating profit / loss amounts are evaluated
regularly by the executive Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing
performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the
Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liahilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on

market / fair value factors.
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to
segments on reasonable basis have been included under "unallocated revenue / expenses / assets /

liabilities”.
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O) EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus
issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split
(consolidation of shares). Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit (considered in
determination of basic earnings per share) after considering the effect of interest and other financing costs
or income (net of attributable taxes) associated with dilutive potential equity shares by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share adjusted for the weighted average
number of equity shares that would have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares,

P) INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.
The Company has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, including uncertain tax
treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them under Ind AS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
i) CURRENT TAX
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects the
uncertainty, related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax liabilities and current tax assets are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

ii) DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liahilities not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recagnition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interest are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered. Such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits irr?proves.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by same tax authority on same taxable entity, or
on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or its tax
assets and liabilities will be realised simultanecusly.

iii) Recognition

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Q) IMPAIRMENT
Impairment of Financial Instruments

The Company recognises loss allowance for expected credit loss on financial assets measured at amortised
cost,

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred

Evidence that a financial asset is credit - impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty; -

- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation: or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Lifetime expected credit losses are credit losses that result from all possible default events over expected
life of financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes hoth
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward looking information. The Company assumes that credit
risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is past due.

The Company censiders a financial asset to be in default when:

- the recipient is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is past due.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs,

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss
recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a
pro rata basis.
An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in estimates used to determine
recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to an extent that asset's carrying amount does not
exceed carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation/ amortisation, if no
impairment loss was recognised.

R) PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
Provisions:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Where the Company expects some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision will be reimbursed
by another party, the reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the entity setties the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a
separate asset.

Contingent liabilities:

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mare uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliabllity. The Company does
not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets: N '
Contingent asset is not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income

that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related
asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
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S) ONEROUS CONTRACTS

A contract is said to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from
the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meetings its obligations under the contract. The
provision for onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract, which is determined
based on the incremental costs of fulfilling the obligation under the contract and an allocation of other costs
directly related to fulfilling the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company recognises any
impairment loss on the assets associated with the contract.

3A Recent pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31,
2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases,
relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company
has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have
any significant impact in its financial statements
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K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025 (X in Lakhs)

As at As at
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024

5(LOANS
Unsecured and Considered good unless otherwise stated
Loans and Advances to Related Parties

1) Mfs KPR Sugar and Apparels Limited 5,992 10,000
5,992 10,000
6|OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(See accounting policy in note 3(H))
Security deposits 12 12
12 12
7|OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Capital advances - 90
Others (Corporate social responsibility (CSR) pre-spent)* - 204
Prepaid Expenses - Corporate guarantee 18 18
18 312
*Refer note 16 and 32.
8|OTHER TAX ASSETS (NET)
Refund Due from income tax 13 100
13 100
9/INVENTORIES
Stock-in-process * 0 -
Finished goods 24 375 27,087
Stores, spares, packing and others 1,263 1,296
25,638 28,383

FINANCIAL ASSETS
CURRENT INVESTMENTS

10|Investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted)
(See accounting policy in note 3(H))
Investments measured at fair value through profit and loss
Nippon India mutual fund 3,610 -
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 3,610 -
The Company's exposure to credit risk and market risk related to investments has been disclosed in Note 37.
11| TRADE RECEIVABLES
(See accounting policy in note 3(H))
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 2,863 5927

2,863 5,927
Less: Loss allowance - %

Net trade receivables 2,863 5,927




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025

(T in Lakhs)

12

13

As at
31.03.2025

As at
31.03.2024

Trade Receivables ageing schedule:

As at 31.03.2025

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled
dues

Less than 6
months

6 months
1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More Than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade
receivables — considered
good

2,851

12

2,863

(ify Undisputed Trade
Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit
risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade
Receivables — credit
impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables— considered
good

(v) Disputed Trade
Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit
risk

(vi) Disputed Trade
Receivables — credit
impaired

Total Trade receivables

2851

12

2863

As at 31.03.2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled
dues

Less than 6
months

6 months
1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More Than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade
receivables — considered
good

5,927

5,927

(i) Undisputed Trade
Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit
risk

(i) Undisputed Trade
Receivables — credit
impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables— considered
good

(v) Disputed Trade
Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit
risk

(vi) Disputed Trade
Receivables — credit
impaired

(i) For receivables secured against borrowings, Refer note 18 and 21
(ii) The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are

disclosed in Note 37,

(iii) For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 38.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(See accounting policy in note 3(B))

Cash on hand
Balance with banks
i) In Current accounts

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balance with banks held as margin money deposit

5 20
1,211 81
1,216 101

66 84
66 84




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025 (X in Lakhs)
As at As at
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
14|{OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET
Interest accrued on deposits 3 4
Interest subvention Receivables 391 269
394 273
15|OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Advances other than Capital Advances
Advance to suppliers 1,703 10,629
OTHERS
Balances with government authorities 80 77
Export incentive receivable 133 209
Others (CSR pre-spent)* 204 391
Others (primarily prepaid expenses) 92 197
2,212 11,503
* Refer note 6 and 38.
16| SHARE CAPITAL
a) Authorised
Equity Capital
24,17,000 (Pr.Yr. 24,17,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 242 242
Preference Capital
47,83,000 (Pr.Yr.47,83,000) 7% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each 478 478
720 720
b) Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
Equity Capital
20,50,000 (Pr.Yr. 20,50,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid-up 205 205
205 205

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

Term / Rights to Shares
Equity Shares

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a face value of ¥ 10 per share. The holder of each

equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees.

The Board declared and paid an interim dividend of ¥ 400 per share (face value of ¥ 10/-each) for the year 2024-25

(Pr.Yr. T 440 on face value of ¥ 10/- each).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the company, after settling the dues of preferential and other creditors as per priority. The distribution will be in

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reportin

period

Equity Shares with voting rights

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

" Numberof [ (Zin Number of ”
Particulars Shares Lakhs) Shares (T in Lakhs)
At the beginning of the period 20,50,000 205| 20,50,000 205
Changes during the year = - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 20,560,000 205| 20,50,000 205
7% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
. Number of (Tin Number of s
Particulars Shares Lakhs) P (¥ in Lakhs)
Al the beginning of the period - - 18,91,500 189
Changes during the year - - - -
Less: Redemption during the year - 18,91,500 189
Outstanding at the end of the period - - - -
Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Shares in the Company
a. Equity Shares
; Number of i Number of .
Pl Shares i Sharas i
M/s K.P.R Mill Limited 20,50,000] 100 20,50,000 100




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025 (¥ in Lakhs)
As at As at
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
17|OTHER EQUITY
Capital Reserve
Opening balance 293 293
Changes during the year - -
Closing balance (A) 293 293
Securities Premium
Opening balance 156 5,547
Changes during the year - (5,391)
Closing balance (B) 156 156

be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year
Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Closing Balance
Retained Earnings
Opening balance
Add: Profit for the year
Less:
Interim Dividend (Pr. Yr ¥ 2,665 Lakhs)
Preference dividend
Transferred to:
Capital Redemption Reserve
Closing balance (C)

considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.
Total (A+B+C)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
18|BORROWINGS
(See accounting policy in note 3(H))
From Banks (Secured)
Term Loan
From banks

Less: amount included under current borrowings

From Others (Unsecured)
Interest Free Sales Tax Loan - NPV

Balance in securities premium represents amount received on issue of shares in excess of par value.The same may

378 189
. 189
378 378

67,972 62,088

7,174 15,107
8,200 9,020
. 14

" 189
66,946 67,972
67,773 68,799

Retained earnings represents profits generated and retained by the Company post distribution of dividends to the
equity shareholders in the respective years. This reserve can be utilized for distribution of dividend by the Company

67,773 68,799
6,581 8774
(2,194) (3,250)
4,387 5,624
389 384
4,776 5,908

18.1|Term Loans from banks are secured by pari-passu first charge on fixed assets of the company and the second

charge on current assels has been given on pari-passu basis to Banks,

18.2|Interest rate relating to term loans from banks is in the range of 7.56% ta 8.10% (Pr.Yr. 7.65% to 8.85%)

18.3| The Company has not defaulted in its repayments of the loans and interest.
18.4|For the current maturities of leng-term borrowings, refer note 21 Borrowings

i) The Company has availed a term loan from HDFC Bank in respect of which balance as at 31.03.2025 was T
6,581 lakhs (Pr.Yr. ¥ 8,774). The loan is repayable in 16 quarterly installments commencing from April 2024. This
term loan is secured by first charge on the fixed assets created out the loan.




K.P.R.

SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025 (¥ in Lakhs)
As at As at
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
19|DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (net)
(See accounting policy in note 3(P))
Deferred tax liabilities 2705 2,635
2,705 2635
20|/OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade Payable 122 122
Payables on purchase of Property, plant and equipment - 356
Others
Deferred revenue arising from government grants 14 59
136 537
CURRENT LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
21|BORROWINGS
(See accounting policy in note 3(H))
Loans repayable on demand from banks - Secured
Working capital loans - 17,951
Current maturities of non-current borrowings 2,194 3,250
2,194 21,201
Information about the company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks is included in Note 37.
21.1|i) Loans for working capital and packing credit are secured by pari passu first charge on the current assets of the

Company and pari passu second charge on entire block of assets of the Company.

ii) The Company has not defaulted in its repayments of the loans and interest during the year.

iii) Interest rate relating to Working capital loans from banks is in the range of 8.70% to 9.00% per annum (Pr.Yr.
7.65% to 8.80%) Interest rates relating to short term loans are in the range of Nill % to Nil % (Pr.Yr. 7.30% to 8.00%)

per annum
(Tin Lakhs)
Reconciliation of cashflows from financing activities
Cash and cash equivalents 1,216 101
Non-current borrowings (4,776) (5,908)
Current borrowings (2,194) (21,201)
Net debt (5,754) (27,008)
oth lsJ Liabilities from
E€rassely  financing activities
NOMN-
current
Cashand borrowin Total
gs Current
cash r : ;
: including| borrowings
equivalents cument
maturitie
Net debt as at 01.04.2024 101]  (5,908) (21,201) (27,008)
Net cash flows 1,115 1,132 19,007 21,254
Net debt as at 31.03.2025 1216| (4,776) (2,194) (5,754)
Net debt as at 01.04.2023 664| (8,047) (13,528) (20,909)
Net cash flows (563) 2139 (7,675) (6,099)
Net debt as at 31.03.2024 101] (5,908) (21,201) (27,008)




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025 (T in Lakhs)
As at As at
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
22| TRADE PAYABLES
(See accounting policy in note 3(H))
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME'), and &5 i3
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,718 596
4,787 609
Trade payables ageing schedule:
As at 31.03.2025
Outstanding for following periods from the date of
ayment
Unbilled | Less :_:years 2.3 years|M0e Than L
dues than 1 3 years
iy MSME 69 - - 69
i) Others 4,671 38 9 4,718
jii) Disputed dues-MSME - E - - - -
iv) Disputed dues-Others - - - - - -
- 4,740 38 9 - 4,787
As at 31.03.2024
Outstanding for following periods from the date of
pRyieTE Total
Unbilled Less 1-2 years |2-3 years Nore Than
dues than 1 3 years
iy MSME 13 13
ii) Others 587 9 596
i) Disputed dues-MSME
iv) Disputed dues-Others
0 600 9 0 0 609

23

24

(i) All the trade payables are current and non-interest bearing.

(ii) Refer note 35 for details of dues to Micro and small enterprises.
(iii) The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 37,

(iv) For terms and conditions relating to related party payables, refer note 38.

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance payment from customers
Statutory dues payable

Employee benefit payable

CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
(See accounting policy in note 3(P))
Provision for tax (net of advance tax)

42 52
164 157
35 21
241 230
231 573
231 673




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025 (¥ in Lakhs)
Year Ended
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
25|REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(See accounting policy in note 3(E))
Sale of products 71,494 89,140
Other operating revenues 1,103 1,373
Revenue from operations 72,597 90,613
25.1|Sale of products
Garment 18,515 20,278
Sugar 29,130 31,210
Molasses = 7,444
Co-gen power 2,895 5,282
Ethanol 21,036 25,146
71,576 89,360
Less: Discount Allowed 82 220
71,494 89,140
25.2|Other Operating Revenues
Export incentives 900 1,028
Others 203 345
1,103 1,373
26|OTHER INCOME
{See accounting policy in note 3(F))
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost;
- Balance with banks held as margin money deposit 3 5
- Others 1,018 220
Gain on sale of current investments (nef) 67 691
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment T -
Miscellaneous income 72 98
Rental income (refer note 41) 1,200 1,200
2,367 2,214
27|COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
a) Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year
Sugar Cane and Coal - -
b) Add: Purchases
Yarn, fabric and garments 14,790 16,797
Sugar cane and coal 39,653 39,072
54,443 54,869
¢) Less : Inventory of materials at the end of the year
Sugar cane and coal - -
Cost of materials consumed (a+ b -c) 54,443 54,869




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025 (¥ in Lakhs)
Year Ended
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
& CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK - IN -
PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE
A) Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods ' 27,087 31,946
27,087 31,946
B) Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 24,375 27,087
24,375 27,087
Net (Increase) / Decrease 2,712 4,859
29|EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(See accounting policy in note 3(K))
Salaries, wages and bonus 271 217
Contribution to provident and other funds 6 10
Staff welfare expenses 104 154
381 381
30|FINANCE COSTS
(See accounting policy in note 3(M))
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings from banks/others:
-Term loans 297 454
-Working capital loans 135 231
Interest on shortfall in payment of income tax 118 67
Other borrowing costs 170 79
Interest on interest free sales tax loan 45 45
765 876
31|OTHER EXPENSES
Manufacturing expenses
Power and fuel . 161 215
Consumption of stores, spares and packing materials 289 430
Repairs and Maintenance
Building 200 180
Machinery 1,163 1,574
Cthers 38 51
Insurance 88 117
Administration Expenses
Legal and professional charges 45 23
Rent 36 33
Rates and taxes 145 120
Payment to auditors (Refer note 32) 3 3
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) - 18
Travelling and conveyance 28 30
Expenditure on Corparate Social Responsibility (CSR) (Refer note 36) 393 331
Donations 3 11
Impairment loss on financial assets - 31
General expenses 79 28
Selling Expenses
Freight and forwarding 924 1,056
Sales commission 19 24
3,614 4,275

Refer note 38 for transactions with related parties.




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025

32 Payment to auditors (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Statutory audit fees 3 3
Reimbursement and other expenses - -
Total 3 3
33 Income tax (T in Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 202324
331 [Income tax recognised in the statement of profit or loss
Current tax
Current income tax charge 2,498 4,963
Tax expenses relating to earlier years 5 (295)
2,503 4,668
Deferred tax
(Benefits) / charge attributable to origination and reversal of temporary differences 70 149
|Total 2,573 4,817
There are no items of income tax recagnised in other comprehensive income.
33.2 Reconciliation with effective tax rate
The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows (T in Lakhs
Effective Tax Rate Amount
i 2024-25 | 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
Profit before tax 9,747 19,924
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 2517% 25.17% 2,453 5,014
Effect of deductions under Chapter VI-A of the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (0.15)% (0.02)% (15) (4)
Effect of non-deductible expenses and others 1.33% 0.51% 130 102
26.35% 25.66% 2,568 5,112
Effect of tax expense relating to earlier years 0.05% (1.48)% 5 (295)
Income tax recognised in the statement of profit or loss 26.40% 24.18% 2,573 4,817
33.3 Movement in Deferred tax liabilities : (Zin Lakhs
Recognised
Particulars Balance as at in P&L Balaztt:e AR Rg?f;lf::gm Balance as at
01.04.2023 durlng42023- 31.03.2024 2024.25 31.03.2025
Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets 2,486 149 2635 70 2,705
34 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
1. Contingent liahilities : (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts #
(i) Income Tax matters o 7
(i) Goods and services tax matters 5 5
(b) Bank Guarantees in favour of Parties outstanding
Indian Oil Corporation 136 535
Hindustan petroleum Corporation 217 237
Bharat Petroleum Corporation 469 393

¥ Fulure cash outflows in respect of the above malters are determinable only on receipt

at various forums / authorities.

of judgments / decisions pending
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K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025

Il.Commitments (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Capital commitments :

(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not

provided for i i

Disclosure with respect to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006"
(“MSMED Act, 2006") is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such

vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from

them on request made by the Company. There are no

overdue principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance sheet date.
There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and accordingly there is

no interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard in respect of payment
forward from previous year.

made during the year or on

balance brought

(Xin Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
1) The Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting
year 69 13

2) Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year

3) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act,
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year

4) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay ih making payment
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

5) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting
year i

6) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23
of the MSMED Act, 2006

Corporate social responsibility expenditure

The gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year towards Corporate Social Responsibllity (CSR)
as per the provisions of seclion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 amounts to ¥ 391 Lakhs (Pr.Yr. ¥ 328 Lakhs).
Amount spent during the year on CSR activities (included in note 31 of the Statement of Profit & Loss) as under.

(% in Lakhs)
ParlElars For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Promotion of education 391 328
Protection of National heritae 2 -
Rural Development Projects - 3
Total 393 331




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.20256

Financial instruments
Accounting classification and fair values:

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy

31.03.2025 % in Lakhs)

Carrying amount
Mandatorily at Other Other Total carrying
Particulars FVTPL - financial financial amount Fair value
Others assets - liabilities
amortised
cost
Financial assets measured at fair value
Current investments 3,610 5 g 3,610| Level 1
Financial assets not measured at fair
value
Loans # 5 5,992 - 5,992
Trade receivables # S 2,863 » 2,863 =
Cash and cash equivalents # - 1,216 = 1,216 -
Bank Balances other than cash and i 66 i 66 z:
equivalents #
Other financial assets # - 406 z 406 =
Financial liabilities not measured at fair
value
Borrowings # - = 6,970 6,970
Trade payables # = : 4,787 4,787 s
Other financial liabilities # - - & & 2
31.03.2024 % in Lakhs)
Carrying amount
Mandatorily at Other Other Total carrying
Particul FVTPL - financial financial amount Eaiteniing
REUGUIAMS Others assets - liabilities au
amortised
cost

Financial assets measured at fair value
Current investments = = - -
Financial assets not measured at fair
value
Loans # - = o =
Trade receivables # = 5,927 - 5,927 &
Cash and cash equivalents # = 101 ; 101 E
Banlk Balances other than cash and 84 ) 84
equivalents #
Other financial assels # - 285 - 285 -
Financial liabilities not measured at fair
value
Borrowings # - 2 27,109 27,109 €
Trade payables # = 7 609 609 -
Other financial liabilities # - - A -

¥ For financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value, the Company has not disclosed the fair values of financial
instruments, since their carrying amounts are reasonable approximations of their fair values.
Note: There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the current and previous year.

Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through optimisation of borrowings and equity balance.




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes 18 and 21 which is off set by
cash and bank balances) and total equity of the Company.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company's net debt to equity ratio as at 31.03.2025 was as follows

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Debt * 6,970 27,109
Less : Cash and bank balances 1,282 185
Net debt 5,688 26,924
Total equity 67,978 69,004
Net debt to equity ratio 8.37% 39.02%

* Dabt is defined as non-current borrowings, current borrowings and current maturities of non-current borrowings as
described in notes 18 and 21 Cash and Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents include cash and cash
equivalents and other bank balances as described in note 12 and note 13

Financial Risk Management

Risk Management Framework

The Company’s corporate treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
International financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risk relating to the operation of the Company through
internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk
(including currency risk, interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Company's policies approved by the board of directors, which provide
written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-
derivatives financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is
reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instrument,
including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will
affect the Company's income or the value of holding of ils financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

(i) Foreign currency risk
The Company's sales and purchases activities expose it primarily to the financial risk of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. The Company enters into plain vanilla forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk.

Details of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposures:

(a) Outstanding forward exchange contracts for hedging purposes as on 31 .03.2025
Currency Cross currency | Amount (¥ in Buy / Sell | Amount (¥ in Buy / sell
Lakhs) Lakhs)
8 - Sell
usp INR i INR i sall

Note: Figures in brackets relales to the previous year

(b) The year-end unhedged foreign currency exposures are given below:

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities which exposes the Company to currency risk are disclosed
below. The amounts shown are those reported translated at the closing rate. Unhedged foreign currency risk exposure at
the end of the reporting period has been expressed in Indian Rupees.

usp EURO GBP Total
As at 31.03.2025
Trade Receivables 4,292 - = 4,292
4,292 - - 4,282

As at 31.03.2024
Trade Receivables 1,499 = = 1,499
1,499 = 4 1,499
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Sensitivity analysis :

Sensilivily analysis is carried out for un-hedged foreign exchange risk as at 31.03.2025. For every 1% strengthening /
weakening of Indian Rupees against all relevant uncovered foreign currency transactions, profit before tax and equity
would be impacied as follows:

Strengthening Weakening
Increase/ (decrease) in Year ended Year ended Year ended |Year ended
profit and equity 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 |[31.03.2024
|usb (43) (15) 43 15
(43) (15) 43 15

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market inlerest rales. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company's debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate exposure (¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Non-current horrowings 4,776 5,908
Current borrowings 2,194 21,201
Total 6,970 27,109

Sensitivity analysis:

Sensitivity analysis is carried out for floating rate borrowings as at March 31, 2025, For every 1% increase in average
interest rates, profit before tax would be impacted by loss of approximately X 69 lakhs (Pr.Yr. ¥ 271 Lakhs). Similarly,
for every 1% decrease in average interest rates there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit before tax.
The calculations are based on a change in the average market interest rate for each period, and the financial instruments
held at each reporling date that are sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variables are held constant.

(iii) Price risk

The Company is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment in mutual funds. The price risk arises due to
uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. As at 31.03.2025, the investments in mutual funds
amounts to ¥ 3,610 Lakhs (Pr.Yr: T Nil).

As regards Company's investments in unquoted equity instruments, the management contends that such investments do
not expose the Company to price risks. In general, these securities are not held for trading purposes.

Sensitivity analysis:

For every 1% increase in price, profit before tax would be impacted by gain of approximately ¥ 36 lakhs (Pr.Yr: Nil).
Similarly, for every 1% decrease in price there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit before tax.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparly to a financial instrument will not meet its contractual obligations, leading to a

financial loss. Credit risk primarily arises from the Gompany's trade receivables, loans, investments, cash and cash
equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables is as follows:

31.03.2025
2,863

31.03.2024
5,027

Particulars
Trade receivables

Trade receivables:

The Company mitigates credit risk by strict receivable management, procedures and policies. The Company has a
dedicated independent team to review credit and monitor collection of receivables. In addition, the Company mitigates
credit risk substantially through availment of credit insurance for both domestic and export buyers.

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine
incurred and expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant
credit losses. Given that the macro economic indicators affecting customers of the Company have not undergene any
substantial change, the Company expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to continue. Further, the
management believes that unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 90 days are still collectible in full, based
on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The impairment loss at the reporting
dates related to customers that have defaulted on their payments to the Company are not expected to be able to pay
their outstanding dues, mainly due to economic circumstances.
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The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. Further, the Company
constantly evaluates the quality of trade receivables and provides impairment loss on financial assets (trade receivables)
based on expected credit loss model.

Cash and cash equivalents and other Bank Balances:

The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institutions as at the reporting dates
which has been measured on the 12-month expected loss basis. The credit worthiness of the banks and financial
institutions are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk.

Liquidity risk management :

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company's approach to managing liquidity is
_to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal

and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's repulation.

All current financial liabilities are repayable within one year. The contractual maturities of non current financial liabilities
are disclosed in note 18.

38 Related Party disclosures
Disclosures under "Ind AS" 24 — Related Party Disclosure, as identified and disclosed by the management and relied
upon by the Auditors:

38.1 Name of related parties and nature of relationships:

Holding Company M/fs. K.P.R.Mill Limited

Sri K.P.Ramasamy

Sri KPD Sigamani

Key Managerial Personnel Sri P.Nataraj

Sri C.R.Anandakrishnan

Sri P.Selvakumar

Sri E.K.Sakthivel (Daughter's Husband of Sri.KPD Sigamani)

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel Smt D.Geetha (Daughter of Sl.KPD Sigamani)
Sri T.N.Arun (Son of Sri. P.Nataraj)

M/fs K.P.R.Developers Limited

M/s K P R Cements Private Limited

M/s K P R Holdings Private Limited

M/s K P R Agro Farms Private Limited

M/s Jahnvi Motors Private Limited

Enterprises owned by key management M/s Quantum Knits Private Limited
personnel/Directors or their relatives M/s Galaxy Knits Limited

M/s KPR Exports Plc, Ethiopia

Mi/s KPR Mill Pte.Ltd, Singapore {Liqudated during the year)
M/s KPR Sugar and Apparels Limited

M/s KPR Capital Cares Limited

M/s KPR Info Solution Private Limited
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Transactions during the year and the balance outstanding at the balance sheet date

(T in Lakhs)
Nature of Transaction Relatives of Key Enterprises owned by key Holding [Total as on
Key Management | management personnel / Company |31/03/2025
management Persons Directors or their relatives
persons
13 14,793 14,806
Purchase of goods
(4,720) (15,796) (20,5186)
Purchase of Asset (68) (68)
; 38 . 38
Revenue from operations
(7,466) : (7.466)
Sale of property plant and - 54 54
equipment & (31.26) (74) (105.26
sl ok 1,017 1,017
arestrece
P - (186) (186)
- 1,200 1,200
Lease rentals received
s (1,200) (1,200)
Equity dividend paid 8,200 8,200
(9,020} (9,020)
Preference Dividend paid ) )
(14) (14)
1 1
Lease rentals paid
(1) (0
59 59
. |Guarantee expenses
(8) (8)
Redemption of Preference £ =
shares (5,580) (5,580)
5,992 & 5,992
Loans receivable
= (10,000) - (10,000)
] 7 1,456 1,463
Advance Receivable
(7,322) (3,014) (10,3386)
(Previous year figures are shown in brackets)
Details of transactions with related parties
a. Purchase of goods (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 14,793 15,796
M/s KPR Sugar and Apparels Limited 13 4,720
14,806 20,516
h. Purchase of Asset (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
M/s.KPR Sugar and Apparels Limited - 68
c. Revenue from operations (X in Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
M/s KPR Sugar and Apparels Limited 38 7466
38 7466
d. Sale of property plant and equipment (% in Lakhs
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
M/s KPR Sugar and Apparels Limited - 31
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 54 74
Jahnvi Motor Private Limited - 0.26
54 105
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e. Interest receipts (Zin Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
M/s.KPR Sugar and Apparels Limited 1,017 186
f. Lease rentals received (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 1,200 1,200
g. Equity dividend paid (% in Lakhs
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 8,200 9,020
h. Preference dividend paid (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
W/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited - 14
i. Lease rentals paid (T in Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 1 1
j. quarantee expenses (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 59 8
k. Redemption of Preference shares (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited - 5,580
I. Loans receivable (T in Lakhs
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
M/s.KPR Sugar and Apparels Limited 5,992 10,000
m. Advance receivable (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 1,456 3,014
M/s K.P.R.Sugar And apparels Limited 7 7,322
1,463 10,336
Earnings Per Share (EPS) (Tin Lakhs
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 7,174 15,107
Less: Preference Dividend and Tax thereon - 14
Weighted average number of equity shares 20,50,000 20,50,000
Face Value Per Share (%) 10 10
Earnings Per Share (%) - Basic and Diluted 349.95 736.24
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025

Segment Reporting

The Company is operating in two business segments, viz., Textile and Sugar as follows

(T in Lakhs)
For the year ended 31 March, 2025
Particulars Business segments Total
Textile Sugar
Revenue 19,336 53,261 72,6597
(21,092) (69,421) {90,513)
Inter-segment revenue g
Total 19,336 53,261 72,597
(21,092) (69,421) (90,513)
Segment result 3,982 3,398 7,380
(3,776) (13,934) (17,710)
Unallocable expenses (net) -
Qperating income 7,380
(17,710)
Other income (net) 2,387
(2,214)
Profit before taxes 9,747
(19,924)
Tax expense 2,573
(4,817)
Profit for the year 7,174
(15,107)
Note: Figures in bracket relate to the previous year
(T in Lakhs)
For the year ended 31 March, 2025
Particulars Business segments Total
Textile Sugar
Segment assets 15,251 67,784 83,035
(12,837) (87,760) {1,00,597)
Unallocated Assets 13
(100)
Total assets 83,048
(1,00,697)
Segment liabilities 7 12,127 12,134
(2,641) (28,479) (31,120)
Unallocated Liabilities 2,936
(573)
Total liabilities 15,070
(31,693)
Other information
Capital expenditure s 982 982
- (9,048) (9,048)
Depreciation and amortization 539 2,763 3,302
(544) (2,282) (2,826)
Capital Employed 67,978
(Segment asset - Segment Liabilities) (69,004

Note: Figures in bracket relate to the previous year
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2025

Revenue from sale of products and services by geographic location of customers:

The geographic information analyses the Gompany's revenue by the Company’s country of domicile and other countries.
In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been determined based on the geographic location of

the customers.

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

India 58,872 74,932

Overseas 12,822 14,208
Regionwise export

Europe 11,385 13,307

North America 32 32

Asia 586 483

) Others 609 386

12,622 14,208

The Company's operations are entirely carried out of India and as such all its non-current assets are located in India.

Information about major Customers
% of Sales

Name of the customer 2024-25 202324
Decathalon Sports Ireland l 17.65 12.01
Indian Qil Corporation 12.43 10.00
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd 12.02 =
Operating Lease Disclosure
As Lessor

The Company has given faclory premises, office spaces, plant and equipment and vehicles on cancellable operating
leases and has earned rental income of T 1,200 lakhs for the year ended 31.03.2025. Since the aforesaid leases are
short-term in nature, there are no lease payments receivable after one year as at 31.03.2025. The expected amount of
minimum lease payments to be received within one year is ¥ 1,200 lakhs.

Disclosure of employee benefits:

Defined contribution plan (X in Lakhs
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Provident Fund 6 5

Employee State Insurance % 4

Other Statutory Information

a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) No funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities {("Funding
Parlies"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall

- directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.

d) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

e) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as,
search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

f) The Company has no transactions with struck off companies during the year,
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g) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulters by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.
h) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies

beyond the statutory period.

Ratios as per the Schedule Il requirements :

a) Current Ratio = Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Current Assets - ¥ in Lakhs 35,999 46,271
Current Liabilities - ¥ in Lakhs 7,453 22613
Ratio 4.83 2.05
% Change from previous year 136.05%

Reason for change more than 25%: :The ratio has increased from 2.05 for the year ended 31.03.2024 to 4.83 for the

year ended 31.03.2025 on account of decrease in current assets.

b) Debt Equity Ratio = Total deht divided by Total equity where total debt refers to sum of current and non-

current borrowings

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Total Debt - ¥ in Lakhs 6,970 27,109
Total Equity - ¥ in Lakhs 67,978 69,004
Ratio 0.10 0.39
% Change from previous year -73.90%

Reason for change more than 25%: :The ratio has decreased from 0.39 for the year ended 31.03.2024 to 0.10 for the

year ended 31.03.2025 on account of decrease in tolal debt.

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt services divided by the Total interest and principal

repayments
(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024

Profit after tax - T in Lakhs 7174 15,107
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost
- Depreciation and amortizations - ¥ in Lakhs 3,302 2,826
- Finance cost - Tin Lakhs 765 876
Earnings available for debt service - T in Lakhs 11,241 18,809
Interest cost on borrowings (Term Loan) - ¥ in Lakhs 297 454
Principal repayments - ¥ in Lakhs 2,194 4,054
Total interest and principal repayments - ¥ in Lakhs 2,491 4,508
Ratio 4.51 417
% Change from previous year B.16%
d) Return on Equity Ratio = Profit after tax divided by average total equity

) (% in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Profit after tax - ¥ in Lakhs 7,174 15,107
Average Total Equity (Refer Note below) - X in Lakhs 68,491 68,758
Ratio 10.47% 21.97%
% Change from previous year -52.33%

Note : Average total equity = (Total equily as at the beginning of respective year +Total equity as at the end of respeclive

year) divided by 2

Reason for change more than 25%: The ratio has decreased from 21.97% for the year ended 31.03.2024 to 10.47% for

the year ended 31.03.2025 on account of decrease in profit after tax for the year.
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e) Inventory turnover ratio = Sales divided by Average inventory (T in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Sales (refer note 1 below) - ¥ in Lakhs 71,494 90,513
Average Inventory (refer note 2 below) - T in Lakhs 27,011 30,806
Ratio 2.65 2.94
% Change from previous year -9.91%

Note 1 ; Sales represents revenue from aperations.

Note 2 : Average inventory = (Total inventory as at the beginning of respective year + Total inventory as at the end of

respecitve year) divided by 2

f) Trade receivables turnover ratio = Credit sales divided by Closing trade receivables

(¥ In Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
" |Sales (refer note 1 below) - ¥ in Lakhs 70,594 89,485
Average Trade Receivables (refer note 2 below) - ¥ in Lakhs 4,395 5,268
Ratio 16.06 16.99
% Change from previous year -5.44%

Note 1 : Sales for the purpose of the table above represents revenue from operations excluding export incentives

Note 2 : Average trade receivables
receiveables as at the end of respecitve year) divided by 2

g) Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by closing trade payables

(total trade receivabes as at the beginning of respective year + Total trade

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Purchases (refer note 1 below) - T in Lakhs 54,443 54,869
Average trade payables ( refer note 2 below) - ¥ in Lakhs 2,698 4,048
Ratio 20.18 13.556
% Change from previous year 48.87%

Note 1: Purchase represents purchases forming part of cost of materials consumed

Note 2 : Average trade payables = (Total trade payables as at te beginning of respective year + Total trade payables as

at the end of respeetive year) divided by 2

Reason for change more than 25%: :The ratio has increased from 13.55 for the year ended 31 .03.2024 to 20.18 for the

year ended 31,03.2025 on account of increase in trade payables

h) Net capital turnover ratio = Revenue from operations divided by Net working capital wherein net working

capital = current assets - current liabilities
(T in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Revenue from operations - T in Lakhs 71,494 90,513
Working capital - T in Lakhs 28,546 23,658
Ratio 2.50 3.83
% Change from previous year -34.54%

Reason for change more than 25%: The ratio has decreased from 3.83 for the year ended 31.03.2024 to 2.50 for the

year ended 31.03.2025 on account of increase in working capital

i) Net Profit ratio = Profit after tax divided by Sales % in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Profit after tax - ¥ in Lakhs 7,174 15,107
Revenue from operations - T in Lakhs 71,494 90,513
Ratio 10.03% 16.69%
% Change from previous year -39.88%

Reason for change more than 25%: The ratio has dacreased from 16.69% for the year ended 31.03.2024 to 10.03 % for

the year ended 31.03.2025 on account of decrease in net profit after tax for the year.
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j) Return on Capital Employed = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by capital employed

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Earnings before interest and taxes (refer note 1 below) - ¥ in Lakhs 10,512 20,800
Captial employed (refer note 2 below) - ¥ in Lakhs 77,653 98,748
Ratio 13.54% 21.06%
% Change from previous year -35.73%

Note 1 : EBIT = Profit before taxes + Finance cosls

Note 2 : Capital employed = Total equity + total debt ( current and non- current barrowings) + deferred tax liabilities
Reason for change more than 25%: The ratio has decreased from 21.06% for the year ended 31.03.2024 to 13.54% for
the year ended 31.03.2025 on account of decrease in Earnings before Interest an Taxes.

The notes from 1 to 44 are an Integral part of these financial statements.
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